
From: Brenda Butler
To: Rick Benedict; Peggy Horton
Cc: Northern Emerald; Jana Weltzin; Randi Baker
Subject: Northern Emerald, LLC DBA Northern Emerald license #32759 Conditional Use Permit Application
Date: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 10:40:13 AM
Attachments: 32759 Board Action Letter Retail MSB.pdf

Commercial Driveway Permit - Existing .pdf
CUP Application - Northern Emerald .pdf
drainage plan.pdf
MSB CUP Narrative - Northern Emerald.pdf
1000 foot buffer map.pdf
drawing floorplan emergency.pdf
Owner & Agent Permission Letter for Use and Occupancy of Premises.pdf
parking plan.pdf
PLAN REVIEW APPROVED LETTER.pdf
sitemap.pdf
vehicle pedestrian circulation.pdf

[EXTERNAL EMAIL - CAUTION: Do not open unexpected attachments or links.]
Good Morning Peggy and Rick,

On behalf of Northern Emerald, please find the attached application for a conditional
use permit and its supplemental documents.
Fees will be mailed to your office today.

Please contact our office if you have any questions or concerns.

Thank you and have a wonderful day!

-- 
** Please REPLY ALL when responding to this Email**

Brenda Butler
JDW Counsel
Senior Paralegal, Notary Public
& Accounts Payable/Receivable
901 Photo Avenue, Second Floor
Anchorage, Alaska 99503
907-231-3750
brenda@jdwcounsel.com
info@jdwcounsel.com

 The author of this email is not an attorney. This communication does not constitute legal advice and should not be
construed as such. The information contained in this message is privileged and confidential. It is intended only to be
read by the individual or entity named above or their designee. If the reader of this message is not the intended
recipient, you are on notice that any distribution of this message, in any form is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this message in error, please immediately notify the sender by telephone at 630-913-1113 and delete or
destroy any copy of this message. Thank you.
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Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 


 


ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
 


550 West Seventh Avenue, Suite 1600 
Anchorage, AK 99501 


Main: 907.269.0350


March 16, 2023 


 


Northern Emerald, LLC  
DBA: Northern Emerald 
Via:  northernemeraldalaska@gmail.com 
 
  
Re: Northern Emerald #32759 


 


Dear Northern Emerald, LLC: 


 


At the March 8 – 9, 2023 meeting of the Marijuana Control Board in Fairbanks, Alaska, the board voted to 
approve your new retail marijuana application with delegation to the director. Delegation means that the board 
has authorized me to issue the license once all outstanding approvals are received. 


 


Attached are post-approval instructions and the pre-inspection checklist, which provide information on your 
next steps. Please note that the pre-inspection checklist is informational. You will be provided with an 
individualized checklist at the appropriate time. 


 


Please contact marijuana.licensing@alaska.gov with any questions. 


 


Sincerely,  


 
Carrie Craig  
Records and Licensing Supervisor 
 
For 
Joan Wilson, Director 
 
cc: License File 
 Matanuska - Susitna Borough  



mailto:northernemeraldalaska@gmail.com

mailto:marijuana.licensing@alaska.gov
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MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 
Planning and Land Use Department 


Development Services Division 
350 East Dahlia Avenue  Palmer, AK  99645 
Phone (907) 861-7822  Fax (907) 861-8158 


Email: permitcenter@matsugov.us 


CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR  
MARIJUANA RELATED FACILITIES – MSB 17.60 


Carefully read instructions and applicable borough code. Fill out forms completely.  Attach information 
as needed.  Incomplete applications will not be processed. 


Application fee must be attached: 
_____  $1,500 for Marijuana Retail Facility 
_____  $1,500 for Marijuana Cultivation Facility 


Prior to the public hearing, the applicant must also pay the mailing and advertising fees associated with 
the application. Applicants will be provided with a statement of advertising and mailing charges. 
Payment must be made prior to the application presentation before the Borough Planning Commission. 


Required Attachments for a Marijuana Cultivation Facility: 
_____  Wastewater and Waste Material Disposal Plan – 17.60.160 (A) 
_____  Odor Mitigation and Ventilation Plan – 17.60.160 (B) 
_____  Hazardous Chemicals Information – 17.60.160 (C) 
_____  Security plan – 17.60.160 (D) 


Required Attachments for Both Retail and Cultivation Facilities: 
_____  Documentation demonstrating full compliance with applicable fire code – 17.60.150 (D) (2) 


Subject Property: Township:              , Range:              , Section:              , Meridian:  
MSB Tax ID#  
SUBDIVISION: _______________________________ BLOCK(S): __________, LOT(S): 
STREET ADDRESS:  
FACILITY / BUSINESS NAME:  


Mailing: Mailing: 


Phone: Hm  Fax Phone: Hm  Fax 


Wk  Cell Wk  Cell 


E-mail E-mail


x


53998000L002
2K&C


2803 S Old Glenn Hwy, Building #2, Palmer, AK 99645 
Northern Emerald, LLC DBA Northern Emerald


600 N Eckert Street, Palmer, AK 99645


Ownership:  A written authorization by the owner must be attached for an agent or contact person, if the 
owner is using one for the application.  Is authorization attached?     □ Yes    □ No    □ N/A
Name of Property Owner  Name of Agent / Contact for application  
Patrick Patrick & Day LLC Keith Crocker / Jana Weltzin


00 N. Eckert Street, Palmer, AK 99645


907-321-5808


northernemeraldalaska@gmail.com northernemeraldalaska@gmail.com



mailto:permitcenter@matsugov.us
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Site Plan – Attach a detailed, to scale, site plan clearly showing the following 
information: Attached 


Proposed and existing structure(s) on the site.  Indicate which structure(s) will be used 
for the proposed use.  Dimensions and locations of all existing and proposed structures 
on the site in relationship to all property lines. 
Signage – Existing and Proposed. 
Location and dimensions for all access points to and from the site to public rights-of-
way or public access easements. 
Buffering – Fences, vegetation, topography, berms, and any landscaping 
Drainage 
Vehicular and pedestrian circulation patterns. 
Exterior site lighting. 
Location and dimensions of parking areas to be provided 
Scale and north arrow using standard engineering intervals such as 1” = 30’, 1” = 50’ or 
similar as required by project size.  


Map – Attach a detailed, to scale, vicinity map clearly showing the following 
information: 


Attached 


Identify all existing land uses within 1,000 feet. 
Scale and north arrow using standard engineering intervals such as 1” = 30’, 1” = 50’ or 
similar as required by project size. 


In order to grant a conditional use permit under MSB 17.60, the Planning 
Commission must find that each of the following requirements have been met. 
Explain the following in detail: 


Attached 


Is the conditional use compatible with and will it preserve or not materially detract from 
the value, character and integrity of the surrounding area? 
Will the granting of the conditional use permit be harmful to the public health, safety, 
convenience and welfare? 
Are sufficient setbacks, lot area, buffers and other safeguards being provided? 
Does the conditional use fulfill all other requirements of MSB Chapter 17.60 pertaining 
to the conditional use in this section? 
Describe measures taken to prevent any potential negative effect upon other properties 
in the area due to such factors as noise and odor. 
Describe measures taken to reduce negative effects upon adjacent properties by: 


• Increased property line and right-of-way buffers
• Planted berms and landscaping
• Site and building design features which contribute to the character of the


surrounding area
Describe how this use is compatible with the character of the surrounding area. 
Current status of State License application process – 17.60.150 (D) (1) 


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes
Yes


Yes
Yes
Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes, Please see
Narrative


No


Yes


Yes
Yes, Please see
Narrative


Yes, Please see
Narrative


Pls See Narrative
Approved by AMCO









		Name of Property Owner                                      Name of Agent / Contact for application
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RETAIL MARIJUANA STORE CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT NARRATIVE 


 
 


Northern Emerald, LLC 
DBA Northern Emerald  


a locally owned and operated business 
 


Submitted: ______, 2023 
 


Prepared by: 


 
 


JDW, LLC 
Jana D. Weltzin, Esq. 


901 Photo Avenue, Second Floor 
Anchorage, AK 99503 
jana@jdwcounsel.com 


630-913-1113 
907-231-3750 


 
On behalf of: 


Northern Emerald, LLC 
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Introduction: 


We are pleased to introduce life-long Alaskan entrepreneurs, Keith Crocker, Patrick 
O’Neal, Jason Wood and Travis Grande. This group is a partnership of motivated and successful 
business owners in the Mat-Su Borough. Prior to venturing into cannabis, currently the group owns 
and operates a local liquor license.  


Keith Crocker, a member of Northern Emerald, LLC has been selected by the company to 
act as the operations manager to handle day to day tasks and obtain all necessary approvals for this 
venture. 


Keith Crocker is an Alaskan resident who has called this beautiful state his home since 
1977. Over the years, Keith has had the privilege of living in several incredible cities, including 
Homer, Ketchikan and Juneau. Keith attended the University of Alaska in Juneau and the Western 
Culinary Institute in Portland Oregon where he learned the skills necessary to excel in the food 
and beverage industry. For the past 32 years, Keith has worked in the beverage industry and for 
30 of those years, he has also been involved in the restaurant business. Along the way, Keith has 
developed a passion for entrepreneurship and now owns several businesses in Juneau, as well as 
serving as a co-owner of the Git N Go store in Butte. In addition to Keith’s professional endeavors, 
he is also a trustee and board chair for the Juneau Elks Lodge. Keith is committed to promoting 
fellowship, charity and community service through this organization, and he takes great pride in 
being able to give back to his community in this way. Keith is incredibly grateful for the 
opportunities he has been given to learn, grow, and serve throughout his life. Keith is dedicated to 
his craft, his passion for entrepreneurship and his commitment to community service are all values 
that he holds dear. Keith looks forward to continuing to make a positive impact on the world around 
him whatever way he can. 


This Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) application for a Retail Marijuana Store is requesting 
approval from this Honorable Commission. Northern Emerald’s retail application has been 
approved with delegation by the Marijuana Control Board “MCB” during the March 2023 meeting. 


 


Required attachments for a marijuana retail facility conditional use permit narrative: 


Is the conditional use compatible with and will it preserve or not materially detract from the 
value, character and integrity of the surrounding area? 


The proposed use is compatible with adjacent properties and fits succinctly into the area as 
there is a mix of uses in the area – the area consists of very large, treed lots, that house commercial 
uses and some residential uses. The property faces S Old Glenn Hwy and is situated for commercial 
use. The entire licensed area, including the restroom, pack/prep/inventory storage rooms and the 
retail sales floor will be approximately 520 square feet. The proposed use fits into the harmony of 
the surrounding uses both in size and design. The facility is located on a 1-acre lot off S Old Glenn 
Hwy. As the facility’s lot is surrounded by remotely located, large undeveloped lots, there are very 
few neighbors, the majority of the lots surrounding the facility are large empty parcels with the 
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exception of Wasilla Towing which sits on the lot next to the proposed retail facility. Therefore, 
the proposed use will not detract from the character, value, and integrity of the surrounding area. 
The facility will not produce any noise pollution and has an odor control method in place.  


Steps have been taken to reduce the potential negative effects of the proposed use upon 
adjacent properties. The facility design utilizes its existing natural landscaping and larger than 
required setbacks, as the lot has been previously approved through a conditional use permit for the 
co-located Liquor license package store. The property exterior to the building will be maintained 
in a manner conductive to a professional appearance as not to present an eye sore to the public or 
surrounding neighbors. Northern Emerald has cleared the land and is diligently working on interior 
and exterior renovations to preserve the character of the neighborhood and property values by 
creating a clean exterior design that fits into the area design. As discussed in this narrative, 
Northern Emerald is located next to commercial use businesses, including their co-located Liquor 
Package Store that has been previously approved through an MSB conditional use permit and 
intends to operate the new retail store as any other business in a competitive market and in a 
professional manner as all commercial businesses in the area are doing. 


The proposed use will meet all compatible uses allowed on adjacent properties and will 
improve the overall neighborhood as the premises will not emit odor, will not produce excess dust, 
will not produce noise pollution, and will have parking & loading on the licensed premises to cut 
down traffic congestion on the street, thus fitting in with adjacent property uses. As detailed in the 
attached site plan, there will be ample space for parking on the premises and will have appropriate 
accessibility spaces under the Americans with Disabilities Act.  


 The facility will be equipped with a 24-hour monitoring alarm system, exterior lighting, 
and video surveillance. All entrances are secured by commercial locking mechanisms and video 
surveillance to capture individuals within twenty (20) feet. Inside the licensed premises, video 
surveillance will cover all areas of the facility (apart from the bathroom) 24/7 (which is stored for 
a minimum of 40 days) to monitor and identify all activity. Specific portions of the store will be 
designated as restricted access areas, with signs posted prominently around the premises stating, 
“Restricted Access Area: Visitors Must Be Escorted” and “Video Surveillance in Progress.” 


In the event a non-employee/agent of the company needs to access the restricted access 
area of the retail establishment, the company visitor policy will be adhered to. A visitor will need 
to show their valid photo identification and obtain a visitor badge to be clearly displayed at all 
times while in the restricted access areas. All restricted access area visitors must be pre-approved 
by management (except for AMCO officials, law enforcement or an agent of the Matanuska 
Susitna Borough) - there should be no unscheduled and unexpected visitors into the restricted 
access area of the retail. Northern Emerald staff must accompany visitors throughout the entire 
visit, with no more than five visitors to one staff member while in the restricted access area – again, 
there likely will not be visitors to the retail restricted access area, because that area is for inventory 
storage and control and is separate from the retail display floor where customers can visit the store 
and purchase products. To maintain the security of the facility and to ensure control over all 
marijuana products, access to the restricted access areas will be monitored and always restricted. 
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Access will only be granted to employees and licensees, AMCO agents, law enforcement and the 
limited exception of scheduled pre-approved visitors. Additionally, Northern Emerald’s interior 
signage will indicate that any members of the public are not allowed unescorted access in the retail 
restricted access designated area.  On the exterior entrance, signage warning the public that only 
persons who are over the age of 21 may enter the retail establishment. Distinct and apparent 
cameras will be placed throughout and around the facility to encourage people to not attempt 
unauthorized access and to discourage criminal activity in the retail and around the surrounding 
areas.  


Will the granting of the conditional use permit be harmful to the public health, safety, convenience, 
and welfare? 


No – Northern Emerald has a detailed security system and plan, diversion/inversion/theft 
control policies, and a loitering check plan.  


The facility is a commercial marijuana retail store that will only allow access to those who 
are at least 21 years of age or older and have produced a valid, government-issued photo 
identification (ID) for staff to inspect before being accepted into the retail floor. There is no onsite 
consumption allowed at this retail establishment – and no customers will be allowed to consume 
in their vehicles in the parking lot – the parking lot will have distinct and apparent cameras pointed 
towards to parking lot to further discourage consuming in vehicles and loitering. A Northern 
Emerald employee shall perform regular parking lot and perimeter checks throughout the day, 
frequent but unscheduled so no member of the public picks up on a scheduled pattern, to ensure 
that no persons are loitering in the area, to identify any persons who may be scoping the facility 
out for illegal purposes or planning a robbery, and to check to ensure that no customers are 
consuming product on the property and/or in their vehicles.  


Ö All marijuana and marijuana products will be displayed in locked display cabinets for 
customers to view. The area behind the cabinets will be a restricted access area and signage 
will be displayed accordingly. Employees will open the cabinet from within the restricted 
access area and place product into exit packaging (i.e., packaging that is child resistant, 
resealable and opaque) at the cash register before handing it to the customer. Once a 
customer’s transaction is complete, they will be instructed by an employee to exit the retail 
store. 


Ö In order to ensure Northern Emerald will only allow access to persons over the age of 
21, the retail establishment will check the ID of every person attempting to enter the retail 
store. Anyone under the age of 21 or who does not produce a valid form of photo ID issued 
by a federal or state agency authorized to issue ID cards will be asked to leave the premises, 
no matter how familiar the employee is with the customer. Any employee checking ID’s 
will have a valid marijuana handler permit and be trained to recognize altered/forged photo 
ID’s. 


 Additional protections to ensure the prevention of any negative impact on the public health, 
safety, convenience, and welfare: 
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✓ The facility will be equipped with a 24-hour monitoring alarm system, bright prominent exterior 
lighting that is downward facing to minimize light pollution to neighboring lots and a video 
surveillance system. All entrances are secured by commercial locking mechanisms and video 
surveillance to capture individuals within 20 feet of all points of entry. Inside the licensed 
premises, video surveillance will cover all areas of the facility (with the exception of the bathroom) 
24/7 (which is stored for a minimum of 40 days) to monitor and identify all activity. All visitors 
must be preapproved by the licensee or a manager (with the exception of AMCO agents, MSB 
agents and law enforcement). To maintain the security of the facility and all marijuana products, 
access to the facility will always be monitored and restricted. Access to restricted access areas will 
only be granted to employees and licensees, AMCO agents, MSB agents, law enforcement and the 
limited exception of scheduled pre-approved visitors. Access to the sales floor will only be granted 
to customers who possess and provide a valid ID that evidences they are over the age of 21. Distinct 
and apparent cameras will be placed throughout and around the facility to encourage people to not 
attempt unauthorized access to the restricted access area and to discourage any criminal or mal-
intent activity. 


✓ On-site video surveillance will continuously monitor all areas of the premises. Employees will 
perform mandatory inventory counts each week, check counts against Metrc records and compare 
with point-of-sale reports to ensure no diversion or inversion is occurring, and document the 
reports as official business records. Northern Emerald will not tolerate any theft, inversion, and 
diversion, and all employees will complete mandatory training in recognizing such activity. 
Northern Emerald management team understands that diversion can happen in two ways - 
inversion and diversion - and is equally profitable diverting product out of the legal system as it is 
diverting product from the illegal system into the legal market. In the event that an employee is 
caught stealing marijuana or infusing the facility with non-regulated black-market product, 
Northern Emerald will notify local law enforcement immediately, comply with all directives, and 
provide all necessary information and records for the investigation. Northern Emerald will take 
the necessary steps to ensure that illegal conduct by an employee does not compromise the facility's 
license and legitimate business operations. Once a theft is reported, the licensee or manager will 
update the product records in the tracking system, as needed, to maintain an accurate and 
comprehensive accounting for all marijuana products and inventory. Northern Emerald will 
comply with all inquiries and investigations lodged by AMCO as a result. Documentation related 
to marijuana theft will be maintained as a business record for five (5) years and made available to 
AMCO upon request. Video recordings will be stored for forty (40) days. Cameras will provide a 
full view of the retail floor, entryway, safes, storage, and product packaging areas. Security 
monitors and video recording equipment will be securely located onsite.  


✓ Qualified candidates will be hired on a probationary period during which they will receive 
training and evaluation specific to their position. Training will include internal policies and 
procedures; state statutes and regulations; diversion, theft, and inversion prevention; sanitation and 
hygiene; legalities and regulation of recreational cannabis at state and federal levels; Metrc use; 
point of sale system functions and use; identification of fake IDs, and safety protocols. Training 
will take place throughout the year when topics arise that need further explanation or refreshing. 







 
MSB Conditional Land Use Permit Narrative for Retail Marijuana Store Page 6 of 8 
Northern Emerald, LLC, DBA Northern Emerald 
 
 


A licensee or manager will present training and education to employees. As proper safety and 
security procedures are of the utmost importance to Northern Emerald, the most up-to-date reading 
materials will always be available to employees. Prior to beginning work, employees will be 
expected to understand the following: (1) Alaska laws, regulations, and codes governing the 
marijuana industry and marijuana establishments; (2) all of the permitting requirements to act as a 
marijuana handler (including obtaining a Marijuana Handler card from a state-approved course 
provider prior to commencing employment) and to work in a marijuana establishment; (3) 
Northern Emerald standards, operational protocol, and best practices with regard to marijuana 
retail sales; (4) general safety procedures and security protocol; (5) how to think defensively if 
threatening situations occur; (6) in-depth information about particular strains and their features; 
(7) in-depth information on the requirements of each room, task, and system; and (8) the general 
federal, state, and local employment regulations by which Northern Emerald is governed. To 
ensure full coverage for each position, all employees will be cross-trained on the requirements of 
each job.  


 ✓ Northern Emerald will have “No Loitering” signs clearly posted around the licensed premises. 
If an employee suspects that a person is loitering, they will be given a verbal warning to leave the 
premises or else law enforcement will be notified.  Trained employees will maintain regular 
periodic checks around the property to deter any unauthorized entrance or loitering around the 
facility. The exterior lighting system will keep the premises well-lit during closed hours and 
provide extra lighting for all surveillance recordings. Exterior lighting will be shielded and 
downward directional to mitigate any unwanted light pollution. Lighting will be frequently 
checked by an employee to ensure that lighting is adequate to prevent dark spots and capture the 
best facial image of every person who approaches the facility. If there are any issues with the 
quality of the surveillance capture, the lighting will be calibrated and/or additional lighting will be 
installed. All outdoor lighting will be shielded to protect against inclement weather and vandalism.  


The facility’s architectural design incorporates lighting that will project light on to the building 
and downward.  The alarm system will monitor for intrusions with motion detectors on all access 
points during closed hours, including the entrance to the licensed facility and secured storage. Live 
security footage will also be accessible to licensee and management via their cellular phones, so 
they may keep an eye on the facility even when they are away. Any attempted or actual intrusion 
will prompt an automatic, electronic alert to the security company who will then contact local law 
enforcement and the licensee or manager. All alarm systems and devices will be tested every six 
(6) months. 


Are there sufficient setbacks, lot area, buffers and other safeguards being provided?  


As described previously, Northern Emerald is located within a 1-acre parcel. This application and 
the layout of Northern Emerald meets the required setbacks, buffers, and lot area. The entire retail 
store is enclosed in a commercial-grade building.  


There will be plenty of onsite parking developed on the site for this use, including accessible 
spaces.   
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The facility has incorporated all measures to reduce the negative effects of the surrounding 
properties, including but not limited to natural landscaping screening and a modest architectural 
design that will not take away from the character of the surrounding area. 


The facility will not produce any noise pollution and has an odor control method in place. A robust 
security plan and the “no loitering” policy will be implemented and thoroughly communicated to 
all employees. Additional safeguards include the following:  


✓ The lighting fixtures will be positioned at an inaccessible height with sturdy housings to deter 
vandalism and common obstructions. The bulbs will be extremely bright to maximize visibility 
and deter crime. The exterior lighting will be checked daily by the manager on duty or licensee to 
ensure that each light in the system is operational, and that each mount is positioned for optimum 
recording clarity and to deter unauthorized presence on the premises. The buildings architectural 
design incorporates shielded lighting to prevent light pollution. Northern Emerald’s co-located 
liquor license package store also has exterior lighting which is an added security measure for the 
retail store. 


 ✓ A third-party security company will install the alarm system and to continuously monitor the 
electronic notifications in the event the alarm is triggered.  The security company will periodically 
visit to check and maintain the equipment.  


 


Does the conditional use fulfill all other requirements of MSB Chapter 17.60 pertaining to the 
conditional use of this section?  


Yes. 


Describe measures being taken to prevent potential negative effect upon other properties in the 
area due to such factors as noise and odor. 


The proposed use will produce very little noise. Northern Emerald does not anticipate any noise 
to come from the facility, and if any noise is to be produced it will be comparable to surrounding 
land uses. The roads that serve the facility and surrounding uses fluctuate in traffic flow during the 
weekends of the summer months due to tourism, however, do not seem to be used to their 
maximum capacity; therefore, any increase in traffic flow on the roads serving the area will be 
sufficient to serve the area with this new proposed retail use.  


Northern Emerald will abide by a strict “no odor” policy per MSB 17.60.150(A)(1) that will ensure 
no odor is detectible by the public from outside the facilities. This use is a retail establishment and 
should not have any issued with odor seeping out from the retail to the outside air. However, in 
abundance of caution, odor control methods will be utilized and will consist of a number of 
methods meant to eliminate odors by utilizing methods including sealed container and air sanitizers 
throughout the building and when transporting marijuana to/from the premises. All marijuana at 
the retail facility will be either pre-packaged in smell proof packaging for sale, deli style enclosed 
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jars that are only opened to take product out for sale to a customer and is repacked prior to exiting 
the facility, or in enclosed jars in small amounts for customers to smell. 


 


Describe how use is compatible with the character of the surrounding area.    


The facility is compatible with the character of the surrounding area as it exists on a largely remote 
property with very few neighboring lots (which are distanced well beyond the required setback 
distances). As well, there are some vacant land parcels nearby that have yet to be developed.  The 
secluded character of the surrounding parcels and their uses are a good fit for a marijuana retail 
store. Within 1000 feet of the proposed location, there appears to be two parcels that are used as 
residential only and one parcel that appears to be a mix of commercial and residential use. The 
remaining parcels within 1000 feet are either vacant or commercial in use.  


Current status of State License Application Process.  


The Application was approved by the Marijuana Control Board during their March 2023 meeting.  


 


Misc. Items and Information. 


Please see attached parking layout diagram, which complies with MSB 17.60.170(B) and (C). 


Proposed hours of operation for the retail establishment shall be Monday – Sunday, 8 am –
Midnight. 


Number of employees onsite will be between 1 and 4, depending on employee shifts, season, and 
other needs of the store.  


Northern Emerald has been reviewed and approved by the State Fire Marshal – See the attached 
certificate of approval. 


The logo for the store is classy and professional that consists of the company name and an emerald-
colored dragon fly (see below). Northern Emerald will have up to two signs on the exterior of the 
facility. Each 5.5’ x 6’ sign will be front lit during operating hours and off during closed hours. 
No sign will exceed 4,800 square inches as per AMCO regulations. 


Thank you for your dedication to the Community and for your thoughtful consideration of this 
conditional land use application.  
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4/27/2023


Oscar Lage
Building Plans Examiner I


Full Plan Review


Northern Emerald - Palmer


Plan Review Approval Letter & Certificate
Grantor:  State of Alaska, Department of Public Safety, Division of Fire & Life Safety
Grantee:  PATRICK PATRICK & DAY LLC
Recording District: 
Legal Description: 
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05/02/2023


SUBJECT: Northern Emerald - Palmer - Full Plan Review
ADDRESS: 2803 S. Old Glenn Hwy #2
CITY: Palmer
PLAN REVIEW: 2023ANCH0117
TYPE OF CONTRUCTION: II-B
OCCUPANCY: M Mercantile
2021 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING AND FIRE CODE


Dear Patrick O'Neal:


Plans for the Full Plan Review have been reviewed by this office for conformity with the State Fire Safety Regulations 
and are hereby approved.  Enclosed is a certificate of approval that must be posted on the premises until completion of 
the above project.


Other requirements have been identified for your project.  An application with shop drawings for the Automatic Fire 
System must be submitted for review and approval within ninety (90) days and prior to the installation on the system.


It is prohibited to occupy this building until construction is completed, and if applicable, the Automatic Fire 
System(s) is installed, tested, and certified as operable.  Any changes to the approved plans must be submitted to this 
office for review and approval.


Approval of submitted plans is not approval of omissions or oversights by this office or noncompliance with any 
applicable regulations of the Municipal Government.  The plans have not been reviewed for compliance with the 
federal Americans with Disabilities Act or structural requirements.


It must be understood that the inclusion of and compliance with State Fire Safety Regulations does not preclude the 
necessity of compliance with the requirements of local codes and ordinances.


If we can be of further assistance in this matter, please feel free to contact us at the address above.


Approved By:
Oscar Lage
Building Plans Examiner I
oscar.lage@alaska.gov


Enclosure: Approval Certificate


Return to Applicant: Patrick O'Neal
600 N. Eckert
Palmer, AK 99645


Department of Public Safety
DIVISION OF FIRE AND LIFE SAFETY


Plan Review Bureau – Anchorage
5700 East Tudor Road


Anchorage, Alaska 99705-1225
Main: 907.269.2004


Fax:907.269.0098
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Revised 7/21/21 Permit# _______________ Page 1 of 3 

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

2023ANCH0117 05/02/2023 Page 2 of 2



2023ANCH0117

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

2023ANCH0117 05/02/2023 Page 1 of 2
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From: MD C
To: Rick Benedict
Cc: bponeal@mtaonline.net
Subject: Re: Northern Emerald - Site Plan
Date: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 2:39:29 PM

[EXTERNAL EMAIL - CAUTION: Do not open unexpected attachments or links.]
Thanks Rick, I have been working with the Owner on the remainder of your questions, I
believe we have them all covered with one exception.  The DOT driveway question is eluding
us at the moment.  I believe Pat is working with DOT to get the correct application in for the
driveway information to include the marijuana license.

Regards,

Mike

From: Rick Benedict <Rick.Benedict@matsugov.us>
Sent: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 2:24 PM
To: MD C <mdcoop_ak@hotmail.com>
Cc: bponeal@mtaonline.net <bponeal@mtaonline.net>
Subject: RE: Northern Emerald - Site Plan
 
Mike,
 
I’ve reviewed the updated site plan and find it acceptable. I will add it to the previously accepted
application materials. Thank you for making the adjustments.
 
The remaining items needed were requested in a letter emailed to JDW Counsel on July 11, 2023. If
you have any questions, please reach out to me.
 
Respectfully,
 
Rick Benedict – Planner II
Development Services Division
Matanuska-Susitna Borough
(907)861-8527 direct 
 

From: MD C <mdcoop_ak@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 9:16 AM
To: Rick Benedict <Rick.Benedict@matsugov.us>
Cc: bponeal@mtaonline.net
Subject: Re: Northern Emerald - Site Plan
 
[EXTERNAL EMAIL - CAUTION: Do not open unexpected attachments or links.]
Rick, thanks for the review comments.  I have attached the updated site plan for your review. I
have included my review responses below in red.

mailto:mdcoop_ak@hotmail.com
mailto:Rick.Benedict@matsugov.us
mailto:bponeal@mtaonline.net


 
 

1. The site plan is still not to scale. I was not able to view, or print, the site plan to correspond to
the scaling it indicated, 1=40’. I tried various printing configurations and none of them
reflected the correct scaling. Perhaps you have a hard copy or can revisit the electronic copy
to see if there was an issue. 

      
       accepted, updated scale set.
 

4. Drainage needs to be indicated on the updated site plan. Using arrows to reflect drainage
throughout the property is acceptable and should be included in the legend.

      
      accepted, I will add drainage arrow to legend
 
 

5. The “North” arrow has not been included.
      
      The North arrow is to the left of the view title, I will update to make clearer.
 
 

7. Distances from all sides of the proposed building to each property line (north, east, south, and
west) have not been shown on the updated site plan.

      
      Accepted, will update all distances to property line.
 
 

9. Identify any buffering on the subject property. Six-foot chain link fencing was included.
However, is there any vegetation, topography, berms, or any other types of visual buffing that
exists, or is being proposed that has not been included in the site plan?

      
      This site is flat and has been cleared of all trees out to the fence line.  No further site
developments are planned
      on this site.
 

11. Dimensions of the access point (driveway) have not been included in the updated site plan.
      
      Accepted, I will update site access to include dimensions.
 
Thanks,
 
Mike
 
 



From: Rick Benedict <Rick.Benedict@matsugov.us>
Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 2:12 PM
To: MD C <mdcoop_ak@hotmail.com>
Cc: bponeal@mtaonline.net <bponeal@mtaonline.net>
Subject: RE: Northern Emerald - Site Plan
 
Mike,
 
I’ve reviewed the updated site plan submitted on 8/22/23. I’ve noted some deficiencies below:

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

2. Drainage needs to be indicated on the updated site plan. Using arrows to reflect drainage
throughout the property is acceptable and should be included in the legend.

3. The “North” arrow has not been included.
4. Distances from all sides of the proposed building to each property line (north, east, south, and

west) have not been shown on the updated site plan.
5. Identify any buffering on the subject property. Six-foot chain link fencing was included.

However, is there any vegetation, topography, berms, or any other types of visual buffing that
exists, or is being proposed that has not been included in the site plan?

6. Dimensions of the access point (driveway) have not been included in the updated site plan.
 
 
Respectfully,
 
Rick Benedict – Planner II
Development Services Division
Matanuska-Susitna Borough
(907)861-8527 direct
 

From: MD C <mdcoop_ak@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 11:18 AM
To: Rick Benedict <Rick.Benedict@matsugov.us>
Cc: bponeal@mtaonline.net
Subject: Northern Emerald - Site Plan
 
[EXTERNAL EMAIL - CAUTION: Do not open unexpected attachments or links.]
Good Morning Rick, I have attached an updated site plan for your review.  I have cc'd the
owner on this email for his reference.
 
If you have any questions or comments, please let me know.
 
 
Mike Cooper

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


From: REBECCA O"NEAL
To: Rick Benedict
Subject: CUP info
Date: Monday, December 18, 2023 8:48:16 PM
Attachments: CUP application.docx

[EXTERNAL EMAIL - CAUTION: Do not open unexpected attachments or links.]
Hi Rick, Here is the requested information addressing the 7 areas that needed
clarification. I have included the CUP info in a word document and scans of the state
and borough business license. Our new DOT driveway permit has been approved,
but we are waiting on the signed copy.  I will forward that to you when we receive it. 
Thanks, Pat

mailto:bponeal@mtaonline.net
mailto:Rick.Benedict@matsugov.us

1. Site plan and map update submitted.



2. We plan to mount a 4’ X 6’ sign on the apex of the building. The sign will be made of wood and aluminum with primary colors of green and white.



3. The business will not produce marijuana waste. It will produce only the normal waste associated with a retail business.  That waste will be collected in a dumpster and sent to the landfill by the waste management contractor.



4. Attached is the current state and borough business licenses.





5. Estimated maximum per hour vehicle usage for 2803 S. Old Glen Highway, Palmer AK:

The maximum number of vehicles per hour using the driveway at this address is estimated to be 28 vehicles per hour. This number was calculated using a manual vehicle count during the peak sales hour (4:30pm - 5:30pm) over a one month period at the existing business. The maximum number of vehicles observed per hour over this counting period was 22.  The addition of a second smaller business at this location is expected to generate an additional business volume of 25%. This would increase the maximum usage by 6 vehicles during the peak business hour.  This will result in a total estimate of 28 vehicles an hour for the peak business hour. However, this number may be reduced because some traffic will utilize both businesses.



6. Our new commercial driveway permit has been approved and we are only waiting for the DOT signed copy.  The old permit #19811 is being replaced with new permit #33100.  I will send the signed copy when we receive it. 



7. The site will have two businesses. The existing business is 2400 sq. ft., and the proposed business is 520 sq. ft. There will be 10 parking spaces including 2 handicap spaces.





1. Site plan and map update submited. 
 

2. We plan to mount a 4’ X 6’ sign on the apex of the building. The sign will be made of wood and 
aluminum with primary colors of green and white. 

 

3. The business will not produce marijuana waste. It will produce only the normal waste associated 
with a retail business.  That waste will be collected in a dumpster and sent to the landfill by the 
waste management contractor. 
 

4. Atached is the current state and borough business licenses. 
 
 

5. Es�mated maximum per hour vehicle usage for 2803 S. Old Glen Highway, Palmer AK: 
The maximum number of vehicles per hour using the driveway at this address is es�mated to be 
28 vehicles per hour. This number was calculated using a manual vehicle count during the peak 
sales hour (4:30pm - 5:30pm) over a one month period at the exis�ng business. The maximum 
number of vehicles observed per hour over this coun�ng period was 22.  The addi�on of a 
second smaller business at this loca�on is expected to generate an addi�onal business volume of 
25%. This would increase the maximum usage by 6 vehicles during the peak business hour.  This 
will result in a total es�mate of 28 vehicles an hour for the peak business hour. However, this 
number may be reduced because some traffic will u�lize both businesses. 
 

6. Our new commercial driveway permit has been approved and we are only wai�ng for the DOT 
signed copy.  The old permit #19811 is being replaced with new permit #33100.  I will send the 
signed copy when we receive it.  
 

7. The site will have two businesses. The exis�ng business is 2400 sq. �., and the proposed 
business is 520 sq. �. There will be 10 parking spaces including 2 handicap spaces. 
 



From: Northern Emerald
To: Rick Benedict
Subject: CUP info Northern Emerald
Date: Friday, January 12, 2024 7:02:26 AM
Attachments: NE State Biz License PDF.eml.msg

[EXTERNAL EMAIL - CAUTION: Do not open unexpected attachments or links.]
Hi Rick, The signage adjacent to the access gate is for the adjacent business not Northern
Emerald. I have attached a copy of the new state business license.  The DOT driveway permit
has been approved and I have been told that they will have the departmental signatures
complete and sent to us by next week. I will forward it to you upon receipt.  Thanks, Pat

mailto:northernemeraldalaska@gmail.com
mailto:Rick.Benedict@matsugov.us

NE State Biz License PDF

		From

		Northern Emerald

		To

		Northern Emerald

		Recipients

		northernemeraldalaska@gmail.com



Good thru 20025



NE State Biz License.pdf




Alaska Business License # 2153479



Alaska Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development
Division of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing 



PO Box 110806, Juneau, AK 99811-0806



This is to certify that



Northern Emerald
600 N. Eckert Street, Palmer, AK 99645



owned by



Northern Emerald, LLC



is licensed by the department to conduct business for the period



January 11, 2024 to December 31, 2025 
for the following line(s) of business:



44-45 - Retail Trade



This license shall not be taken as permission to do business in the state without having
complied with the other requirements of the laws of the State or of the United States.



This license must be posted in a conspicuous place at the business location. 
It is not transferable or assignable.



Julie Sande 
Commissioner
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
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